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�2nd Circuit upholds forfeiture of hotel despite innocent owner defense. (476) The district court granted summary judgment in favor of the government, ordering the forfeiture of a hotel because of narcotics activity at the hotel. The Second Circuit affirmed despite claimant's innocent owner defense. Once the government showed probable cause to believe that the property was subject to forfeiture, the burden of proof shifted to claimant to establish that the narcotics activity occurred without its knowledge or, if it had knowledge, its consent. To demonstrate lack of consent, the claimant must prove that it did all that reasonably could be expected once it learned of the activity. The only material submitted, an unsworn letter by claimant's principal owner, was an inappropriate response to the motion for summary judgment, and the factual assertions in the letter were properly disregarded. There was no evidence that claimant provided tenants with ID cards, screened visitors, secured vacant rooms, kept common areas well lit, or evicted tenants for drug activity. The hotel hired untrained guards and spent less than $3.50 a day on security. U.S. v. All Right, Title and Interest in Real Property and Appurtenances, 77 F.3d 648 (2d Cir. 1996).�xe "U.S. v. All Right, Title and Interest in Real Property and Appurtenances, 77 F.3d 648 (2d Cir. 1996)."�





2nd Circuit says jury could have found claimant tried to prevent use of property by drug offenders. (476) The government sought forfeiture of claimant's apartment building which had been used to facilitate drug transactions. Before trial, the judge found that claimant knew about the drug activity at the building but that there was a genuine issue as to whether he consented to this activity. The jury returned a judgment for claimant, but the judge ruled that claimant had failed as a matter of law to sustain his innocent owner defense. The Second Circuit reversed, ruling that a reasonable jury could have found that claimant took all reasonable measures to rid the property of the drug activity. Claimant offered evidence that he attempted to screen tenants and evict those who committed drug crimes. He said he believed he could not evict tenants until they had been convicted. The jury was entitled to credit this testimony. Finally, there was evidence that claimant did investigate suspected drug users and sellers in his building. Although the district court held that his efforts to obtain information from the police were insufficient as a matter of law, a rational juror could find he was reasonable in con�cluding that further attempts would be useless. U.S. v. One Parcel of Property Located at 121 Allen Place, Hartford, Connecticut, 75 F.3d 118 (2d Cir. 1996).�xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Property Located at 121 Allen Place, Hartford, Connecticut, 75 F.3d 118 (2d Cir. 1996)."�





2nd Circuit rules parents did not take all reasonable steps to prevent children from possessing drugs at their residence. (476) Claimants lived on a multi-family residence with their four children, all of whom had severe narcotics problems and had been convicted of narcotics crimes. The property was used to facilitate the crimes of possession with intent to distribute, in violation of 21 U.S.C. §841, and possession by a person previously convicted of a narcotics offense, in violation of 21 U.S.C. §844. The district court found that claimants did not know of the §841 violations, but they knew of the §844 violation. The 2nd Circuit held that claimants were not innocent owners, because they did not take all reasonable steps to prevent the §844 violations. Claimants did press their children to stop using drugs and took steps to remove the children from the neighborhood. However, they did not conduct searches of the residence. This was significant in light of claimants' arrest, and subsequent release, after police found drugs in the home. Although claimants were fearful of retaliation from drug dealers in the neighborhood, it would have been reasonable for claimants to ask police to take action with respect to drug activity in their own home. Finally, claimants could have issued their children an ultimatum to comply with the law or move out. U.S. v. Two Parcels of Property Located at 19 and 25 Castle Street, 31 F.3d 35 (2d Cir. 1994).�xe "U.S. v. Two Parcels of Property Located at 19 and 25 Castle Street, 31 F.3d 35 (2d Cir. 1994)."�





2nd Circuit finds that claimants knew of and consented to drug traf�ficking on their property. (476) The 2nd Cir�cuit upheld the forfeiture of real property, finding that there was probable cause and that claimants were not innocent own�ers. Due to the extraordinary volume of drug trans�actions occurring on, nearby, or directly related to the premises (66 drug-re�lated ar�rests over a three-year period), the trial court cor�rectly found probable cause that the property had been used to facilitate drug trafficking. Further, the court did not err in rejecting claimants' improbable testi�mony that they had no knowledge of drug-traf�ficking on their prop�erty and had not con�sented to it, particularly given their own drug-related arrests on the site and their presence during arrests for various other drug trans�actions. A claimant who has knowl�edge that his property is being used for drug-related purposes must take reasonable steps to pre�vent this illicit use in order to show a lack of consent. Claimants failed to show that they took those steps. That similar drug activity may have pervaded the neighborhood did not excuse them. U.S. v. All Right, Title, and In�terest in Real Property and Appurte�nances Thereto Known as 785 St. Nicholas Ave., 983 F.2d 396 (2d Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. All Right, Title, and In�terest in Real Property and Appurte�nances Thereto Known as 785 St. Nicholas Ave., 983 F.2d 396 (2d Cir. 1993)."�





2nd Circuit rejects innocent owner de�fense where claimant did not take all reasonable steps to prevent drug trafficking in home. (476) A forfeiture action was brought against claimant's residence based upon her hus�band's drug activities. The 2nd Circuit re�jected claimant's innocent owner defense since drugs and drug paraphernalia were found throughout their shared bedroom and some drug paraphernalia was found in plain sight. Even if claimant's husband had exclu�sive control of the dresser, closet and jewelry box where drugs were found, the fact that a sifter, grinder, sheets of paper, and funnel were in plain view on top of the dresser belied claimant's ignorance of drug activities in the bedroom. Her purported ig�norance was at best "willful blindness," and at worst perjuri�ous. The abundance and visibility of the nar�cotics evidence contradicted any contention that claimant took all reasonable steps to prevent the ille�gal use of the property. Judge Van Graafeiland dis�sented. U.S. v. One Par�cel of Property, Located at 755 Forest Road, 985 F.2d 70 (2d Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. One Par�cel of Property, Located at 755 Forest Road, 985 F.2d 70 (2d Cir. 1993)."�





2nd Circuit reverses summary judgment for determina�tion of whether claimants consent�ed to drugs on prop�erty. (476) Claimants received a letter from a city coun�cilman advising them of drug activity in their leased building. Claimants contacted the councilman, who ad�vised claimants to consult an attorney. Claim�ants promptly consulted an attorney, who advised them that mere allegations of drug use were insuffi�cient to justify eviction. Therefore, claimants did not attempt to evict the tenants. The 2nd Circuit reversed a summary judg�ment order in favor of the government. Under the court's recent decision in U.S. v. 141st Street Corp., 911 F.2d 870 (2d Cir. 1990), mere knowledge of drug activ�ity is in�sufficient grounds for forfeiture. A claimant is entitled to an innocent owner defense by establishing either lack of knowl�edge of drug activity, or lack of con�sent to the illegal activity. The case was remanded to de�termine whether the claimants' actions constituted taking "all rea�sonable steps" to prevent the illicit use of the property. U.S. v. Certain Real Property and Premises, Known as 418 57th Street, Brooklyn New York, 922 F.2d 129 (2d Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. Certain Real Property and Premises, Known as 418 57th Street, Brooklyn New York, 922 F.2d 129 (2d Cir. 1990)."�





2nd Circuit holds that innocent owner must establish either lack of knowledge or lack of consent. (476) The 2nd Circuit held that a claimant may avoid forfeiture by establishing ei�ther that he had no knowledge of the nar�cotics activity, or if he had knowledge, that he did not consent to it. To show lack of consent, a claimant must prove that upon learning of the illegal activity being con�ducted on the property, he or she did all that reasonably could be expected to prevent it. In this case, the jury's conclusion that the owner failed to meet this burden was supported by the evi�dence. Although the police called the presi�dent of the corporation several times and left messages regarding the drug activity in the corpora�tion's apartment building, the president never returned any of the calls, and took no steps to curb the drug activity. Once the building was raided and the corporation ad�mitted it knew of the drug activity, it instructed the building superintendent not to accept rent from the ten�ants who were arrested. A jury could reasonably con�clude that the corporation either knew of the narcotics activity prior to the raid and took no steps to stop it, or that corporation's response after learning of the raid was inadequate. U.S. v. 141st Street Corpo�ration, 911 F.2d 870 (2d Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. 141st Street Corpo�ration, 911 F.2d 870 (2d Cir. 1990)."�





3rd Circuit holds that wife failed to raise gen�uine issue of lack of consent to husband's drug activities. (476) In U.S. v. Parcel of Real Property Known as 6109 Grubb Road, 886 F.2d 618 (3d Cir. 1989), the 3rd Circuit held that a spouse could suc�cessfully assert an innocent owner defense by proving either lack of knowl�edge or lack of consent. Here, however, the 3rd Circuit rejected the wife's "self-serving, uncorro�bor�a�t�ed assertion that she always pleaded with her husband to stop growing marijuana and threatened to leave him if he did not." The undisputed facts showed that the wife had "sub�stan�tial and protracted involve�ment in the marijuana oper�ation taking place on the property." Thus there was no gen�uine issue of material fact as to her non-consent de�fense. For similar reasons the court rejected the wife's duress de�fense. U.S. v. One 107.9 Acre Parcel of Land located in Warren Town�ship, 898 F.2d 396 (3d Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. One 107.9 Acre Parcel of Land located in Warren Town�ship, 898 F.2d 396 (3d Cir. 1990)."�





3rd Circuit holds innocent owner may prevail in forfei�ture proceedings by establishing lack of knowledge or consent; he need not show both. (476) The wife of a convicted drug de�fendant appealed the civil forfeiture of her home on the grounds that she lacked knowl�edge of her husband's use of the marital home for drug transac�tions and furthermore did not consent to such use. Title to the home was held as a tenancy in the entirety be�tween the two. The 3rd Circuit vacated the forfeiture, holding that the legislative history of 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(1) compels the conclusion that an owner or indi�vidual with interest in the for�feited property can avoid forfeiture by proving by a preponder�ance of the evidence that the illegal act or omission which forms the basis for the forfeiture was committed or omitted without his or her knowledge or consent. Fur�thermore, knowledge of illegal activity is not equal to consent. To succeed in challenging the forfeiture, a claimant need only establish one of the two. Should the claimant succeed in estab�lishing this factual determina�tion, it is then necessary to determine the extent of his or her interest in the prop�erty. U.S. v. Parcel of Real Prop�erty Known as 6109 Grubb Road, 886 F.2d 618 (3d Cir. 1989).�xe "U.S. v. Parcel of Real Prop�erty Known as 6109 Grubb Road, 886 F.2d 618 (3d Cir. 1989)."��xe "U.S. v. Parcel of Real Property Known as 6109 Grubb Road, 896 F.2d 618 (3d Cir. 1989)."�





5th Circuit says innocent owner defense applies only to claimants whose property is taken without consent. (476) Claimant's sister brought $124,813 in cash into the U.S. without filing a currency report. Claimant asserted that he and his minor daughter were innocent owners of the currency. He submitted his deceased father's will, which disinherited his sister, and an affidavit from their mother, a resident of India. The affidavit stated that the sister induced the mother to give the sister money and jewelry belonging to her deceased father, with the assurance that after the sister completed some business in the U.S., she would give the equivalent of the cash and jewelry to her brother. The Fifth Circuit rejected the innocent owner defense under Calero-Toledo v. Pearson Yacht Leasing Co., 416 U.S. 663 (1974). Calero-Toledo did not create a general "innocent owner" defense to statutory forfeiture. The case actually upheld a forfeiture statute that did not contain an innocent owner defense. However, in dicta, the Supreme Court suggested that the constitution required an innocent owner defense for claimants whose property was taken without their privity or consent, or for those who had done all that could reasonably be expected to prevent the proscribed use of the property. A claimant has the burden of establishing that he is a member of that class. Claimant did not meet that burden. U.S. v. One Hundred Twenty-Four Thousand Eight Hundred Thirteen Dollars ($124,813) in United States Currency, 53 F.3d 108 (5th Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. One Hundred Twenty-Four Thousand Eight Hundred Thirteen Dollars ($124,813) in United States Currency, 53 F.3d 108 (5th Cir. 1995)."�





5th Circuit remands for determination on whether spouse is innocent owner. (476) The government estab�lished probable cause that claimant's house, which she owned with her hus�band, had been used by her husband to distribute and store drugs. The 5th Circuit re�manded the case for the district court to de�termine whether the illegal acts were con�ducted without her "knowledge or consent." The government pre�sented no evidence that claimant was involved in any drug related ac�tivity, or that she participated any drug trans�actions between her hus�band and a govern�ment informant. Claimant's denials, which were not contradicted by the gov�ernment, raised a genuine issue regarding her knowledge and consent. Since the government met its burden of show�ing proba�ble cause, after re�mand, claimant would have to prove by a pre�ponderance of the evidence that the drug ac�tivity in her home took place without her knowledge or con�sent. U.S. v. Lot 9, Block 2 of Donnybrook Place, Harris County, Texas, 919 F.2d 994 (5th Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. Lot 9, Block 2 of Donnybrook Place, Harris County, Texas, 919 F.2d 994 (5th Cir. 1990)."�





6th Circuit does not require owner who claims lack of consent to take reasonable steps to prevent crime. (476) Claimant allowed Campbell, a friend and alleged former drug co-conspirator, to reside at his property while claimant was in prison. When police found a marijuana growing operation on the premises and initiated a civil forfeiture action, claimant asserted an innocent owner defense. The Sixth Circuit held that, once the government established probable cause to believe the property was used to grow marijuana, the burden shifted to claimant to show either that “he did not know of Campbell’s illegal activity, or if he knew, he did not consent to Campbell’s use of his property to distribute marijuana.” Moreover, unlike some courts, see, e.g., U.S. v. 141st Street Corp., 911 F.2d 870, 879 (2d Cir. 1990), the Sixth Circuit does not require a claimant asserting a defense based on lack of consent to show that he took reasonable steps to prevent the illegal activity. U.S. v. One Parcel of Property, Located at 255 Vance Avenue, 173 F.3d 430 (6th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished).�xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Property, Located at 255 Vance Avenue, 173 F.3d 430 (6th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished)."�





6th Circuit relies on criminal convic�tions to pre�clude litigation of forfeitability of proper�ty. (476) Claimants had been con�victed of growing marijuana on a 51-acre tract of land. The district court relied on the convictions in granting summary judgment of forfeiture of the property. The 6th Circuit noted that the fact of criminal convic�tion does not necessarily preclude litigation of a for�feiture action, but it af�firmed reliance on the doctrine of collateral estoppel on the facts of this case. The owner of the property could not have been convicted had the criminal jury believed that she lacked knowl�edge and did not con�sent to her husband's drug ac�tivities on the property, and her husband's convic�tion also supported forfei�ture of his dower in�terest in the property. U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo�cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. Three Tracts of Property Lo�cated on Beaver Creek, 994 F.2d 287 (6th Cir. 1993)."�





8th Circuit rejects innocent owner defense by non-resident owner of drug house. (476) Claimant’s brother was “a large-scale drug dealer operating out of a house [claimant] owned, and … it was obvious to an ordinary person the property was used for drugs, based on the extensive foot traffic and the presence of home-protection devices typically used by large-scale drug dealers.” Claimant did not live in the house but was a frequent visitor, and he admitted that his brother would have left the house had he asked. Accordingly, it was not error for the district court to disbelieve claimant’s denial of knowledge of ongoing drug activity in the house, nor did the district court err in concluding that claimant consented to the illegal use of his property. U.S. v. North 48 Feet of Lots 19 and 20 in Block 8 of M.J. Hammett’s Addition . . . Pine Bluff, Arkansas, 138 F.3d 1268 (8th Cir. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. North 48 Feet of Lots 19 and 20 in Block 8 of M.J. Hammett’s Addition . . . Pine Bluff, Arkansas, 138 F.3d 1268 (8th Cir. 1998)."�





8th Circuit holds that claimants failed to es�tablish ei�ther of the Calero-Toledo innocent owner defenses. (476) A drug smuggler pur�chased the airplane with drug pro�ceeds and flew it to Belize in 1984 to pick up a load of marijuana. The plane was seized by soldiers in Be�lize. Thereafter, the smug�gler signed over ownership of the plane to the claimants, who reg�istered it in their names and made efforts to recover it from Belize. In 1986, the plane ap�peared in Arkansas with a load of marijuana where it was seized by Customs. The 8th Cir�cuit held that the claimants failed to establish either of the Calero-Toledo innocent owner defenses. They did not prove that the aircraft was stolen or taken from them without their consent, nor did they show that they did all they could to prevent the theft and subsequent misuse. "[M]ere igno�rance is not a valid de�fense to for�feiture." U.S. v. One 1976 Cessna Model 210L Aircraft, 890 F.2d 77 (8th Cir. 1989).�xe "U.S. v. One 1976 Cessna Model 210L Aircraft, 890 F.2d 77 (8th Cir. 1989)."�





9th Circuit says owner of unreported currency may have innocent owner defense to forfeiture. (476) The claimant wired cash from the United Arab Emirates to an account held in the name of his brother at a U.S. bank. The next day the brother withdrew all the funds in cash. Both brothers agreed that to avoid wire transfer fees, the brother would hand carry the money back to the United Arab Emirates. At the border, the brother falsely declared that he was carrying only $5,000. The cash was seized and forfeited. On appeal, the Ninth Circuit held that the claimant was entitled to assert an innocent owner defense under Calero-Toledo v. Pearson Yacht Leasing Co., 416 U.S. 663, 689-90 (1974). The court said that the claimant must establish that 1) he has an ownership in the property, 2) any illegal use of the property was done without his knowledge or consent, and 3) he took all reasonable steps to prevent the proscribed use of the property. The court held that on the facts of this case, a fact finder could conclude that the claimant acted reasonably when he agreed with his brother that the currency would be hand carried back to their native land without explicitly directing the brother to comply with U.S. law or file the report himself. Judge Rymer dissented. U.S. v. $69,292.00 in U.S. Currency (Faheemi), 62 F.3d 1161 (9th Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. $69,292.00 in U.S. Currency (Faheemi), 62 F.3d 1161 (9th Cir. 1995)."�





9th Circuit finds claimant failed to meet his burden to show that money was not related to narcotics traffick�ing. (476) To rebut the gov�ernment's showing of proba�ble cause in a civil forfeiture pro�ceeding, the claimant must "prove the money had an inde�pendent source and had not been used illegally."  Here the claimant testified and was cross-ex�amined in a three-day bench trial. He testified he had accumulated the $216,000 in his office safe from transac�tions involving the sale of gold and had "loaned" it to the courier to purchase gold coins from a dealer in Los An�geles. He took no receipt or other evi�dence for the loan and he was not told by the courier who the Los Angeles seller was or where in the Los An�geles area he could be found. He conceded that cash transactions were contrary to his usual practice. He also "testified that he took no precautions to guard against illegal use" by the courier. Thus the court ruled that his "[f]ailure to exercise due care precludes reliance upon the innocent owner de�fense." U.S. v. $215,300 U.S. Cur�rency, 882 F.2d 417 (9th Cir. 1989).�xe "U.S. v. $215,300 U.S. Cur�rency, 882 F.2d 417 (9th Cir. 1989)."� 





10th Circuit holds that property owner was not an innocent owner where she failed to investigate the property thoroughly when all signs indicated it was being used to grow marijuana. (476) When police raided the defendant real property, the owner’s son was caught with 5 marijuana plants he’d pulled from the ground as he fled. A search warrant was later executed and more marijuana and firearms were found on the property, as well as indicia of a prior marijuana growing operation. After her son pleaded guilty to drug offenses, the government filed a civil forfeiture action against the real property under 21 U.S.C. 881(a)(7). The owner filed a claim in which she asserted the innocent owner defense, and the government filed a motion for summary judgment. The ND Ok. district court granted the government’s motion, finding no facts that could lead a reasonable jury to believe that the owner was an innocent owner. The Tenth Circuit found that Congress had placed strict duties upon landowners to rid their property of drug activity. Her decisions not to investigate the property thoroughly when all signs indicated it was being used to grow marijuana, not to alert the police, or evict her son upon continued evidence of his illegal activities, and her failure to take any comparable steps defeated her innocent owner claim. The Tenth Circuit found that the owner could not show lack of consent, and thus affirmed. U.S. v. 16328 S. 43rd East Avenue, Bixby, Tulsa County, Oklahoma, 275 F.3d 1281 (10th Cir. 2002). 





11th Circuit rejects innocent owner defense for transferees who acquired property inter�est after illegal activity. (476) Claimant, a criminal defense attorney, received from a client, in satisfaction of a legal fee, a $50,000 promissory note and a mortgage deed on certain real property. The government later brought a civil forfeiture action against the property under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(7) on the ground that it was used by the client for drug trafficking purposes. The attorney conceded that he knew of his client's illegal activity on the date of the transfer. Therefore the Eleventh Circuit held that the attorney was not an innocent owner under §881(a)(7). The knowledge element of the innocent owner test refers to knowledge at the time the property is transferred, not at the time of the illegal activity. The lack of consent defense is not available to post-illegal act transferees because it would be absurd to allow transferees with knowledge of the illegal use of the property to claim they were innocent owners simply because they were not on the scene early enough to consent. U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Estate Located at 6640 SW 48th St, Miami, Dade County, Florida, 41 F.3d 1448 (11th Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Estate Located at 6640 SW 48th St, Miami, Dade County, Florida, 41 F.3d 1448 (11th Cir. 1995)."�





11th Circuit holds that lack of consent re�quires proof that claimant made all rea�sonable efforts to prevent illicit use of his property. (476) The jury was presented with a special interrogatory concern�ing claimant's innocent owner defense which asked whether claimant proved, by a preponderance of the evi�dence, that he did everything that he could rea�sonably be expected to do to prevent the subject property from being used for drug ac�tivity. The 11th Circuit held that this accu�rately stated the law in the circuit under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(7). The same standard applies to actions under §881(a)(6). Nonetheless, the court erred in failing to in�struct the jury on the definition of consent and the "all reason�able efforts" standard. The court should have made clear that the stan�dard does not require the claimant to make all efforts, but merely all reason�able ones. The "all reasonable efforts" standard can be sat�isfied by contacting and cooperating with law en�forcement authorities, especially when a claimant is unable to halt drug traffic on his own. U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Es�tate at 1012 Germantown Road, 963 F.2d 1496 (11th Cir. 1992).�xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Es�tate at 1012 Germantown Road, 963 F.2d 1496 (11th Cir. 1992)."�





11th Circuit holds that owner who knew co-owner used drug proceeds to purchase and improve property was not inno�cent owner. (476) Claimant used legitimate funds to jointly purchase and improve with his brother a parcel of real es�tate. The brother used drug proceeds to finance his portion of the expenses. The 11th Circuit found that claimant was not enti�tled to the innocent owner defense. The leg�islative history evinces an intent to forfeit the invest�ments of those who knowingly do busi�ness with drug dealers. "Innocent owners are those who have no knowledge of the illegal activ�ities and who have not consented to the illegal activities. As to a wrongdoer, any amount of the invested proceeds trace�able to drug activities forfeits the entire property," not merely the funds traceable to the illegal activi�ties. How�ever, a claimant who has actual knowledge of the com�mingling of legitimate and drug funds may avoid forfei�ture as an inno�cent owner if the claimant can prove he did everything rea�sonably possible to withdraw the commingled funds or to the dis�pose of the property. U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 15603 85th Avenue North, Lake Park, Palm Beach County, Florida, 933 F.2d 976 (11th Cir. 1991).�xe "U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 15603 85th Avenue North, Lake Park, Palm Beach County, Florida, 933 F.2d 976 (11th Cir. 1991)."�





11th Circuit affirms that claimant was inno�cent owner of property used by son to dis�tribute drugs. (476) The 11th Circuit affirmed the district court's determination that claimant was an innocent owner of property which her son used to facilitate the sale of cocaine. The dis�trict court gave credibility to claimant's de�nial of any knowledge of her son's illegal trans�actions on the prop�erty, and found that claimant expressly prohibited any illegal use of the property. In addi�tion, the FBI agent in charge of the investigation acknowl�edged that no con�traband was ever seen on the property, no purchase or sale of illegal substances was ever observed on the prop�erty, no search war�rant on the premises was ever ex�ecuted, and no dogs were ever called in to sniff for drugs. The only evidence of drug use was the immu�nized testimony of a witness who claimed to have pur�chased drugs from the son, and informants who spoke to the FBI agent. U.S. v. Real Prop�erty & Improvements Located at 5000 Palmetto Drive, Fort Pierce, St. Lucie County, Florida, 928 F.2d 373 (11th Cir. 1991). �xe "U.S. v. Real Prop�erty & Improvements Located at 5000 Palmetto Drive, Fort Pierce, St. Lucie County, Florida, 928  F.2d 373 (11th Cir. 1991). "�





11th Circuit holds that owner who knew co-owner used drug proceeds to purchase and improve property was not inno�cent owner, unless he did everything reasonably possible to withdraw commingled funds. (476) Claim�ant used legitimate funds to jointly purchase and improve with his brother a parcel of real es�tate. The brother used drug proceeds to finance his portion of the expenses. The 11th Circuit found that claimant was not enti�tled to the innocent owner defense. The leg�islative history evinces an intent to forfeit the investments of those who knowingly do busi�ness with drug dealers. "Innocent owners are those who have no knowledge of the illegal activ�ities and who have not consented to the illegal activities. As to a wrongdoer, any amount of the invested proceeds trace�able to drug activities forfeits the entire property," not merely the funds traceable to the illegal activi�ties. How�ever, a claimant who has actual knowledge of the com�mingling of legitimate and drug funds may avoid forfei�ture as an inno�cent owner if the claimant can prove he did everything rea�sonably possible to withdraw the commingled funds or to dis�pose of the property. U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 15603 85th Avenue North, Lake Park, Palm Beach County, Florida, 933 F.2d 976 (11th Cir. 1991).�xe "U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 15603 85th Avenue North, Lake Park, Palm Beach County, Florida, 933 F.2d 976 (11th Cir. 1991)."�





11th Circuit rejects innocent owner defense for wife beaten by husband. (476) Claimant's husband sold drugs from the residence owned by claimant. Evidence re�vealed that the hus�band had (a) beaten to death his for�mer wife, (b) on one occasion choked claimant, (c) threatened claimant, (d) owned several guns, and (e) was described by one witness as a "madman" and by an�other as "the devil." The 11th Circuit reversed the dis�trict court's deter�mination that claimant did not consent to her husband's illegal use of the property and thus was entitled to the innocent owner defense. The court re�fused to substitute "a vaguely-de�fined theory of 'battered wife syndrome' for the showing of duress." In order to es�tablish the duress defense, the threat must be immedi�ate, rather than a "general concern that a cocon�spirator might retaliate." Nothing in the record suggested the hus�band threatened immediate retaliation if claimant did not cooper�ate. Claimant had ample opportunity to flee or to contact law enforcement agents concerning her husband's activities. U.S. v. Sixty Acres in Etowah County, 930 F.2d 857 (11th Cir. 1991).�xe "U.S. v. Sixty Acres in Etowah County, 930 F.2d 857 (11th Cir. 1991)."�





11th Circuit rules yacht owner failed to estab�lish inno�cent owner defense due to suspicious circumstances of purchase. (476) The 11th Circuit held that a yacht owner failed to qualify as an innocent owner in defense of a forfeiture action. To qual�ify as such, the claimant must prove not only that he was uninvolved in and unaware of the drug activity, but that he took all reasonable steps to prevent such use. Here, he failed to do so given the ob�viously suspect na�ture of the buyer's purchase proposal. He failed to ask for identification from the buyer and did not inquire of law enforcement offi�cials or the commu�nity at large re�garding the buyer's reputation. These cir�cumstances im�posed a duty upon him to take measures to en�sure that the yacht would not be used for ille�gal purposes. He failed to discharge that obli�gation. U.S. v. One 1980 Bertram 58 Foot Mo�tor Yacht, 876 F.2d 884 (11th Cir. 1989).�xe "U.S. v. One 1980 Bertram 58 Foot Mo�tor Yacht, 876 F.2d 884 (11th Cir. 1989)."�





Alabama rejects innocent owner defense because claimants failed to take reasonable efforts to prevent illegal use of their property. (476) The government filed a civil forfeiture action against claimants’ residence under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(7), alleging the defendant-property was the situs of discussions to purchase powder cocaine, and where an unspecified quantity of crack was distributed. The district court rejected claimants’ innocent owner defense. In order to prevail as an innocent owner, the court posited that a claimant must establish the following three elements: “(1) he was not involved in the wrongful activity, (2) he was not aware of the wrongful activity, and (3) he had done all that reasonably could be expected to prevent the proscribed use of the property.” While finding that claimants satisfied the first two elements of the innocent owner defense, the court held that the third element was not satisfied because claimants failed to mention any steps they took to discourage illicit activity on the defendant-property. U.S. v. One Parcel Property Located at 7079 Chilton County Road 37, 123 F. Supp.2d 602, (M.D. Ala. 2000).





New York District Court holds matriarch of extended fam�ily was innocent owner of lease�hold. (476) Claimant lived in a small three-bedroom apartment with 17 mem�bers of her extended family. The government instituted forfeiture pro�ceedings against her leasehold interest af�ter claimant's granddaughter was ar�rested for selling crack from the apartment. The District Court for the Eastern District of New York found that claimant was an innocent owner. Claimant repeatedly stated that she had no knowledge of drug activity in the apartment, and that she did not know of any possible illegal uses of the drug paraphernalia recovered from the apartment. When pre�sented with anonymous charges of drug traf�ficking in her household, she promptly investi�gated the allegations, confronting her family members and ques�tioning them about drug ac�tivity. She prohibited mem�bers of the house�hold from having guests while she was away, and insisted that only family members answer the door. This testimony was not incredible. The apartment was not a crack house, and the government established only one drug sale and hidden drug parapher�nalia. The granddaugh�ter did forfeit whatever independent interest in the property she might have. U.S. v. The Leasehold Interest in 121 Nos�trand Avenue, Apartment 1-C, Brook�lyn, New York, 760 F.Supp. 1015 (E.D.N.Y. 1991).


